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Pleasant Grove 
Li bertytown 
Private 

The earliest known records referring to "Pleasant Grove" indicate 
that it was purchased by a planter, Amos Davis, in 1787. It is 
unlikely that the land was improved by this owner, however since 
in 1803 it was sold by his heirs, Ephraim Davis, Thomas Davis and 
Frances Motton for $2,000.00 to Francis Sappington. 

The house was certainly built by 1840 when Sappington 1 s heirs, 
Thomas and Sally sold the now divided one hundred eighty-five acre 
property to John Foutz in 1840. The property remained in some 
branch of the Foutz family until 1925. 

Much of the significance of this site is gained from the complete 
group of outbuildings still in existence on the property. These 
buildings include a smokehouse, spring and icehouse, servant 
quarters and three level barn. A carriage house, which was also 
located on the premises, has been demolished. 

The outbuildings stand in a line directly in front of the main 
residence. All are frame buildings. The servant quarters build­
ing is a two story residence three bays wide with one story shed 
addition to the west side. The barn, which is of a particularly 
unusual design, was built by 1857 as indicated by an 11 S. P. Foutz 
1857 11 inscription on an interior wall. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT ANO ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

Pleasant Grove is a banked three story gable roofed brick residence laid 
in corrmon bond which faces north from the east side of Fountain School 
Road. The principal facade is four bays wide with two main entrances 
located in the second and third bay on the second level. Each entrance 
is occupied by an original six panel door with three light transom. 
Occupying the remaining bays on the second and third levels are double 
hung 6/6 windows with architrave molding flanked by louvered shutters. 
A replaced frame porch with wood hand railing extends across the front 
of the building. An entrance to the first level is located in the first 
bay from the northwest corner of the building. A double hung 6/6 window 
with louvered shutters is located in the fourth bay on the first level. 

The main residence extends three bays deep. An even fenestration pattern 
is located on either gable end of the building. On the east gable, 
three 6/6 double hung windows flanked by louvered shutters are located in 
each bay on the second level and identical windows are located in the 
first and third bay on the third level. 

On the west gable end of the building double hung 6/6 windows flanked by 
louvered shutters occupy the first and third bay on each level. Small 
seven pane Palladian windows are located at the top of each gable and are 
straddled by the chimney flues on the interior which meet in a relieving 
arch over the window. 

The south side of the building which is now used as the main entrance 
is three bays wide. The second level with double hung 6/6 windows flanked 
by louvered shutters occupy each bay. The first level has been signifi­
cantly altered. Originally an entrance was located in the first bay as 
well as the second bay. This entrance has been bricked closed. A six 
panel door with molded rail and raised panel, three light transom, 
recessed three panel molding or entranceway and original single stone 
door sill is located in the second bay. The third bay, which was 
originally occupied by a double hung 6/6 window, has been changed by the 
addition of a multi-paned modern bay window. 

The house is constructed on a high random stone foundation covered with 
cement. The building is covered by a replaced asphalt roof with three 
stepped brick cornice. 

The interior of the building has been substantially altered with new 
flooring, walls, woodwork and floor plan. A cistern and vegetable 
storage area remains intact on the first level of the building on the 
west side. 

Much of the significance of this site is gained from the complete group 
of outbuildings still in existence on the property. These buildings 
include a smokehouse, spring and icehouse, servant quarters and three 
level barn. A carriage house, which was also located on the premises, 
has been demolished. 
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SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ ARCHITECT Thomas Sappington 
STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The earliest known records referring to 11 Pleasant Grove 11 indicate that 
it was purchased by a planter, Amos Davis, in 1787. 

It is unlikely that the land was improved by this owner however, since 
in 1803 it was sold by his heirs, Ephraim Davis, Thomas Davis and 
Frances Motton for $2,000.00 to Francis Sappington.I 

The house was certainly built by 1840 when Sappington's heirs, Thomas 
and Sally sold the now divided one hundred eighty-five acre property to 
John Foutz in 1840.2 The property remained in some branch of the Foutz 
family until 1925. 

John Foutz conveyed the property to his son, Samuel Foutz, just four 
years later who farmed the land until 1866 when he sold the house and 
ninety-three acres of the land to his daughter and her husband, Henry 
and Mary A. (Foutz) Hyder.3 

In 1896 Henry Hyder died and his widow sold the 11 homeplace 11 to her 
daughter and son-in-law, H. Lee and Elsie Stoner.4 

After this sale the farm was sold almost once a decade until it was 
purchased by the current owner in 1976. 

The property is significant for the unusual style of bank barn (three 
level) on the farm as well as the banked residence and four remaining 
bank buildings. 

1Frederick County Land Records, Liber WR 25; Folio 290. 
2Ibid., Liber HS 11; Folio 244. 

3Ibid., Liber CM 8; Folio 467. 
4Ibid., Liber 269; Folio 79. 
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II!JGEOGRAPHICAL DATA 
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY--------

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES 

STATE COUNTY 

STATE COUNTY 

mFORM PREPARED BY 
NAME I TITLE clh 
Cherilyn Widell. Coordinator 

ORGANIZATION DATE 

Frederj ck Co!lnty Office of Hi star; c PreseryaHan 6/3/80 
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE 

12 F Ch11rch St , Winchester Hall 694-1063 
CITY OR TOWN STATE 

Frederick Mantl and 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 Supplement. 

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information 
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe­
ment of individual property rights. 

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust 
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle 
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 
( 301) 267-1438 

PS· 1101 



7. DESCRIPTION {continued) 

Pleasant Grove F-8-46 

The outbuildings stand in a line directly in front of the main residence. All 
are frame buildings. The servant quarters building is a two story residence 
three bays wide with one story shed addition to the west side. 

The barn which is of a particularly unusual design was built by 1857 as 
indicated by an "S. P. Foutz 1857" inscription on an interior wall. 

2 

The first level of the barn is used for animal storage. The second level is 
used for hay and grain storage which was easily dropped for use to the level 
below. The third level, which may be entered by an entrance ramp from the 
south side was and is used for equipment storage. The supporting beams are 
also of an unusual design, prong shaped to support the roof and at right angles 
with twin upper supports vertically. 
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